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This is the shorter PowerPoint version of the final report from the RELB Project. This D10 presentation highlights 

the findings from the RELB work packages:

Review of existing studies – a review of past estimates in the literature of land availability for new perennial 

energy crops and new Short Rotation Forestry production in the UK and Europe;

Desk and Field studies – report of and findings from the validation exercises carried out;

Mini case studies – individual reports on the three 50x50 km cells assessed in the field study;

Opportunities and barriers – report of desk study undertaken to understand why bioenergy crop production does 

not currently utilise the ‘available’ land and to identify opportunities to increase planting;

Final summary and conclusions

For the detailed version of this report, the reader should see deliverable D9 which is provided in Microsoft Word 

format.

Context:
Many significant pieces of work have been undertaken to assess UK “2nd generation” bioenergy feedstock 

production potential. The RELB project was undertaken to help refine and sense-check these existing estimates, 

including the ETI's own in-house modelling assumptions, in order to understand what further ‘correction factors’ 

(if any) may need to be applied to adjust existing estimates. In addition, the project aimed to better understand 

the process for converting land to 2nd generation bioenergy feedstocks and the impact planting these 

feedstocks could have on farm businesses. The RELB project had four distinct work packages:

 1. A review of latest theoretical estimates of land available for biomass production in the UK and Europe.  

 2. A desk study to identify additional constraint layers which could be used to refine the ETI's own in-house land 

availability constraint masks. The suitability of these additional constraint layers was tested through field surveys. 

 3.  A review of the steps and agencies involved in land use change to bioenergy crops and forestry.

 4. Case studies of three farmers who have planted bioenergy crops, focusing on the financial and food 

production impacts of their decision.

The Energy Technologies Institute is making this document available to use under the Energy Technologies Institute Open Licence for 

Materials. Please refer to the Energy Technologies Institute website for the terms and conditions of this licence. The Information is licensed 

‘as is’ and the Energy Technologies Institute excludes all representations, warranties, obligations and liabilities in relation to the Information 

to the maximum extent permitted by law. The Energy Technologies Institute is not liable for any errors or omissions in the Information and 

shall not be liable for any loss, injury or damage of any kind caused by its use. This exclusion of liability includes, but is not limited to, any 

direct, indirect, special, incidental, consequential, punitive, or exemplary damages in each case such as loss of revenue, data, anticipated 

profits, and lost business. The Energy Technologies Institute does not guarantee the continued supply of the Information. Notwithstanding 

any statement to the contrary contained on the face of this document, the Energy Technologies Institute confirms that the authors of the 

document have consented to its publication by the Energy Technologies Institute.
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Area (kha)
Near-term Long-term

Min Max Min Max

UK Energy crops 7 1,723 89 10,569

UK SRF 0 2,498 0 4,131

EU Energy Crops 940 25,217 1,640 108,200
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UK estimated area available for energy crops (kha)

kha

Study type min max min max

Demand led 7 1,723 314 10,569

GIS 638 800 337 9,086

Land balance 177 890 478 7,349

Inventory / meta analysis 7 740 99 3,630

Agent based model 39 303 89 1,800

Farmer Survey 29 99 546 968

All studies 7 1,723 89 10,569

UK estimated area available for SRF (kha)

kha

Study type min max min max

Land balance 50 2,498 305 4,131

Inventory / meta analysis 0 66 0 1,241

All studies 0 2,498 0 4,131

EU estimated area available for energy crops (kha)

kha

Study type min max min max

Demand led 940 25,217 1,640 18,793

Land balance / meta analysis 4,000 20,500 7,780 108,200

Inventory 1,350 1,350 no data no data

All studies 940 25,217 1,640 108,200

Future potentialNear-term 

Near-term Future potential

Near-term Future potential
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Cell Arable

(None)

(ha)

Grass

(None)

(ha)

Forest

(None)

(ha)

Arable

(9w)

(ha)

Grass

(9w)

(ha)

Forest

(9w)

(ha)

Suggested Analysis Reason

19 54,529 120,547 32,341 43,841 72,749 22,137 Desk and field study BVCM Miscanthus and SRF preference area. 

Water stressed area.

40 183,740 30,569 3,551 175,021 25,920 3,320 Desk study only BVCM Miscanthus and SRF preference area. 

On edge of water stressed zone.

46 128,138 66,795 2,612 120,732 61,608 2,454 Desk and field study BVCM Miscanthus and SRF preference area. 

Area with current energy crop production

72 202,484 12,599 2,587 178,354 9,857 2,293 Desk study only BVCM Miscanthus and SRF preference area. 

Area with current energy crop production

100 24,900 130,030 45,570 20,258 63,305 34,510 Desk and field study BVCM SRC Willow preference
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How much of the cell is visible from your assessment point(s)? 80%

Proportion of the cell not assessed 20%

Arable 25%

Other cropping e.g horticulture 0%

Type of production Select

Improved grassland (includes rough grazing areas) 15%

Semi natural grassland 5%

Scrub (unmanaged woody shrubs, tall ruderal vegetation, grasses, brambles) 0%

Moorland (bracken, dwarf shrub heath, fen/marsh/swamp, bog and 
montane habitats)

0%

Parkland 0%

Semi-natural broadleaved woodland 5%

Semi natural coniferous woodland 0%

Semi natural mixed woodland 0%

Plantation broadleaved 0%

Plantation coniferous 0%

Biomass crops/SRC/SRF 0%

Golf course/Polo pitch/other amenity land 0%

Development Residential/Industrial 0%

Buildings present 20%

Building type (select dominant type if more than one) Residential building

Water body 0%

Water body type (select dominant type if more than one) still water i.e pond/lake

Boundary area 9%

Boundary type (select dominant type if more than one) Hedges

Solar farm 0%

Highways and associated verges 1%

Wind farm 0%
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Land area forecast (pro 

rata)

Surveyor forecast

Available Unavailable Total

Available 444 29 473

Unavailable 14 123 137

Total 458 152 610
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Originally 

Available

UKERC 9w

(whole 

cell)

Newly 

unavailable 

(from desk 

study)

Number 

of sub-

cells 

surveyed

Available 

according 

to field 

survey

Unavailable 

according to 

field survey

Available 

according 

to desk 

study

Newly 

unavailable 

according to 

desk study

Cell 019 1565 696 206 121 85 126 80

Cell 046 2053 280 202 179 23 181 21

Cell 100 1320 318 202 173 29 156 46
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•

Cell No. Improved 
pasture %

Coniferous 
plantation %

Arable % Semi-natural 
broadleaved 
woodland %

Cell 100 34 28 4 4

Cell 46 20 0 39 3

Cell 19 26 1 18 12
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Likelihood layer Summary

Proportion of 
area in flood risk 
area

Planting in flood plains may provide 
additional benefits but more use for 
targeting planting

Proportion of 
area in NVZ

Planting in NVZs may provide additional 
benefits but more use for targeting 
planting

Proportion of 
land area rented

County scale data. Indicates likelihood of 
planting rather than land availability.



Constraint layer Extra sub-cells 
excluded in all 
5 study cells

Summary

Altitude >300m 174 Absolute constraint but only for cell 100

Grade 1 land 156 Not absolute constraint – financial influence

Soil >80% clay 0 No exclusions in study cells

Buildings/water 22 Absolute constraint but doesn’t exclude gardens & 
amenities

Priority habitats 777 Not absolute constraint & doesn’t cover Scotland

SN woodland 510 Doesn’t include all Semi natural (SN) woodland

Parks & gardens 126 No clear evidence base

Stewardship 998 Not mapped for Scotland; subject to change

Water stressed areas 2,759 Available dataset excludes large areas. Not as 
important for small scale planting.



Number of ‘available’ sub-

cells after applying new 

mask

869

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

696

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC 9w

44%

Based on provisional 
constraint mask



Number of ‘available’ sub-

cells after applying new 

mask

1711

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

488

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC 9w

22%

Based on provisional 
constraint mask



Number of ‘available’ sub-

cells after applying new 

mask

1773

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

280

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC 9w

14%

Based on provisional 
constraint mask



Number of ‘available’ 

sub-cells after applying 

new mask

1497

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

502

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC 9w

25%

Based on provisional 
constraint mask



Number of ‘available’ sub-

cells after applying new 

mask

1002

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

318

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC 9w

24%

Based on provisional 
constraint mask



Cell 19
Desk study

Unavailable Available Total

Field survey

Unavailable 48 37 85

Available 32 89 121

Total 80 126 206

Cell 46
Desk study

Unavailable Available Total

Field survey

Unavailable 8 15 23

Available 13 166 179

Total 21 181 202

Cell 100
Desk study

Unavailable Available Total

Field survey

Unavailable 7 22 29

Available 39 134 173

Total 46 156 202



Study

Cell
Desk misclassifies as 

available

Survey 

misclassifies as 

available

Desk misclassifies 

as unavailable

Survey misclassifies as 

unavailable

19 Houses, gardens, golf 

courses, quarries, 

carparks not picked up

Woodland not in ancient 

woodland or priority 

habitat inventories

Over-estimation of 

unavailable area by 

surveyors

UKERC-9w mask 

excluding land for 

unknown reason

Environmental 

stewardship option areas 

not identified

Priority habitat / ancient 

woodland not identified

46 Houses, gardens, golf 

courses, quarries, 

motorways/main roads, 

carparks not picked up

Over-estimation of 

unavailable area by 

surveyors

Environmental 

stewardship option areas 

not identified

ALC Grade 1  and Parks & 

Gardens areas not 

identified

100 Woodland not in ancient

woodland inventory

Over-estimation of 

unavailable area by 

surveyors

Slope assessed as too 

steep

UKERC-9w mask 

excluding land for 

unknown reason

Land not identified as over 

300m elevation

Ancient woodland not 

identified
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0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Provisional
new mask

Without
semi-natural

woodland
constraint

Without
Priority
Habitat

constraint

Without
buildings &

water bodies
constraint

Without parks
constraint

Without
stewardship

options
constraint

Without land
productivity
constraint

Without
stewardship
options or

parks
constraint

Odds Ratio OR=1

Error bars represent 2.5% - 97.5% confidence intervals around the odds ratio



0

5

10

15

20

25

Provisional
new mask

Without semi-
natural

woodland
constraint

Without
Priority Habitat

constraint

Without
buildings &

water bodies
constraint

Without parks
constraint

Without
stewardship

options
constraint

Without land
productivity
constraint

Odds Ratio OR=1

Error bars represent 2.5% - 97.5% confidence intervals around the odds ratio



0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Provisional new
mask

Without semi-
natural woodland

constraint

Without buildings
& water bodies

constraint

Without parks
constraint

Without altitude
constraint

Odds Ratio OR=1

Error bars represent 2.5% - 97.5% confidence intervals around the odds ratio



Layer ECS Strengths Weaknesses Inclusion in 
final mask?

Altitude 1 Good evidence base; sufficient 
accuracy

Could not be assessed in 
survey

Yes

Grade 1 28 Proxy for competition with 
food crops

Poor evidence base; could not 
be assessed in survey

Yes

Ordnance
survey vector 
map

1 Excludes additional areas 
UKERC misses

Couldn’t be assessed in cells 
19 & 100

Yes

Priority 
habitats

75 Good evidence base; most 
important constraint

Some not identified by survey; 
not Scotland

Yes

Semi-natural 
wood

1 Good evidence base Some not identified by survey Yes

Parks 3 Designated landscape with 
special historic interest

Couldn’t be assessed in cells 
19 & 100; limited evidence 
base

Yes

Environmental 
stewardship

511 Reasonable evidence base Could not be assessed in 
survey

No



Feature not

identified
Current limitations Potential data sources How would it be used

Gardens OpenSource datasets only identify the 

extent of buildings, not gardens.

Datasets identifying “Urban areas” 

miss smaller towns and villages.

MasterMap (Ordnance 

Survey)

UKLand (The 

GeoInformation Group)

Attributes of the MasterMap dataset include descriptions on 

the land surface type.

Dataset includes “Residential with amenities” as individual 

features.

Golf

Courses

No datasets currently exist UKLand Dataset includes “Residential with amenities” as individual 

features.

Quarries MasterMap

BRITPITS (British Geological 

Survey)

UKLand

Identify features of “Manmade Landforms”.

Use point data to identify quarry locations then digitize 

extents.

Dataset includes “Mining and spoil areas” as individual 

features.

Roads (as

polygons)

All current OpenSource datasets 

contain roads as polyline features

MasterMap

Current OpenSource data

UKLand

Identify features of “Road Or Track” or “Roadside”

Use a generic buffer distance for a given road type to 

estimate the coverage of roads

Dataset includes “Principle Transport Roads” as individual 

features.

Carparks 

(and other 

manmade 

surfaces)

OpenSource datasets do not currently 

identify carparks

MasterMap

UKLand

Identify “Man made” land surfaces

Dataset includes “Business parks” and “Retail parks” as 

individual features which seem to include the carparks.

Playing

fields

Future greenspace map

Scotland: Greenspace map

UKLand

N/A

Unknown

Dataset includes areas of “Recreational land” as individual 
features.



Number of ‘available’ sub-

cells after applying new 

mask

725

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

552

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC 9w

35%

Based on final constraint mask



Number of ‘available’ sub-

cells after applying new 

mask

1422

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

199

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC 9w

9%

Based on final constraint mask



Number of ‘available’ sub-

cells after applying new 

mask

1608

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

115

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC 9w

6%

Based on final constraint mask



Number of ‘available’ sub-

cells after applying new 

mask

1246

Number of ‘newly 

unavailable’ sub-cells

251

Percentage decrease in 

available sub-cells from 

UKERC-9w

13%

Based on final constraint mask



Cell 19
Desk study

Unavailable Available Total

Field survey

Unavailable 43 42 85

Available 20 101 121

Total 63 143 206

Cell 46
Desk study

Unavailable Available Total

Field survey

Unavailable 7 16 23

Available 1 178 179

Total 8 194 202

Cell 100
Desk study

Unavailable Available Total

Field survey

Unavailable 7 22 29

Available 39 134 173

Total 46 156 202
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Advantages Limitations

Built upon UKERC study to further refine 
estimates rather than replicating 
previous work

UKERC-9w mask not disaggregated and 
its components could therefore not be 
ground-truthed

Additional constraints identified based 
on scientific understanding rather than 
dataset availability

Gaps in datasets to represent constraints, 
particularly for Scotland

Field survey provided credibility to the 
method and enabled refinement of the 
final mask

There were some constraints that could 
not be identified by field survey as they 
were not visible on the ground

Statistical analysis provided a means of 
ranking constraints by their importance 
in determining availability

Field survey could not provide ‘gold 
standard’ against which to test validity of 
desk study datasets

Study covered areas of varying 
landscapes and thus enhanced our 
knowledge of spatial variability in 
constraints

Study would have benefited from a larger 
selection of cells on which to test 
constraint layers covering all typologies



•

•

•

•

•

•





•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•

Project type

Threshold 

(where no 

part of the 

land is in a 

sensitive 

area)

Threshold 

(where project 

is wholly or 

partially within 

a sensitive 

area)

Consenting 

organisatio

n (England)

EIA 

Agriculture

Planting 

Miscanthus or 

arable crops on 

uncultivated 

land* (semi 

natural land in 

Scotland) 

2 ha 2 ha
Natural 

England

EIA Forestry

Afforestation: 

any tree 

planting 

including SRC 

and SRF on all 

land types

5 ha

2 ha (National 

Park, AONB)

No threshold 

for all other 

sensitive areas 

such as SSSIs

Forestry 

Commission



Site 

selection by 

owner/ 

agent

Cultivated 

land

Site less than EIA 

(Agriculture) 

threshold

Uncultivated 

land

Issues 

identified 

during EIA 

screening

Closer 

consultation 

and 

stakeholder 

engagement –

statutory and 

public register

Standard 

consultation –

statutory and 

public register and 

applicant 

addresses issues 

and produces 

Environmental 

Statement

NE uphold or 

reject or 

recommend 

modification

Site over EIA 

(Agriculture) 

threshold. Consult 

NE

No issues 

identified 

during EIA 

screening

NE ask for 

Environmental 

Statement 

under EIA regs

(NE can 

provide advice 

on what this 

should 

contain) 

NE 

determinatio

n

Rejection

Appeal

Approval

Proceed 

to 

planting

Approval

Proceed to 

planting

Proceed 

to 

planting

Are there any 

designated 

heritage 

assets on the 

land?

Yes. 

Consult 

Historic 

England

Approval

Rejectio

n

No

Are there 

any 

PROWs 

on the 

land?

Yes. 

Consult 

Local 

Authority

No

Are there 

any utility 

lines on 

the land?

Yes. 

Consult 

utility 

company

No
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Agency (England) Involvement in energy crops/tree planting Responsibilities

Natural England Energy Crops Scheme; Countryside Stewardship 

scheme; Catchment Sensitive Farming

Managing claim forms and ongoing agreements under 

ECS2 until 2021 

Statutory body dealing with EIA (Agriculture) 

Forestry Commission Woodland Grant Schemes Statutory body dealing with EIA (Forestry); Felling 

licenses

Environment Agency Energy crops and flooding; Discharge of 

wastewater; nitrate vulnerable zones

Statutory consultee for discharge of wastewater and 

treated effluent through bio-filtration systems

Historic England Protecting designated heritage assets Statutory consultee for growers wishing to plant on 

sites with scheduled monuments etc.

Local authorities Protecting non-designated heritage assets; 

Maintaining public rights of way (PROWs)

Statutory consultee for growers wishing to plant on 

sites with non-designated heritage assets and PROWs

DEFRA Energy Crops Scheme, CAP reform, Rural 

Development, Funds; Air quality

Agriculture policy; Rural development policy; define the 

agricultural and environmental research agenda; apply 

air quality standards and emissions levels from biomass 

boilers

DECC Renewable energy incentives (ROCs, CFD, RHI) Energy policy; define the energy research agenda; in 

charge of sustainability lists

Ofgem RO, Domestic and non-domestic RHI Delivery of Government renewable schemes; Develop 

guidance notes on sustainability compliance, host 

carbon calculators
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Data layer Source of data Download location Licence Attribution statement

Altitude Terrain 50 (Ordnance 

Survey)

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/o

pendatadownload/products.html

http://www.nationalarchiv

es.gov.uk/doc/open-

government-

licence/version/3/

Contains OS data © Crown copyright [and database right] (2015)

Agricultural land 

productivity

ALC (Natural 

England) 

http://www.magic.gov.uk/ https://www.gov.uk/gover

nment/uploads/system/upl

oads/attachment_data/file

/391764/OGL-NE-OS.pdf

© Natural England copyright. Contains Ordnance Survey data © 

Crown copyright and database right [2002]

Agricultural land 

productivity

LCA (James Hutton 

Institute)

http://www.macaulayscientific.com/gi

s2_dataset_5a.php

Land Capability for Agriculture copyright and database right The 

James Hutton Institute 2015. Used with the permission of the 

James Hutton Institute. All rights reserved. Any public sector 

information contained in these data is licensed under the Open 

Government Licence v.2.0.

Soil Parameters European Topsoil 

Physical Properties

http://esdac.jrc.ec.europa.eu/content

/topsoil-physical-properties-

european-scale-using-lucas-topsoil

N/A Ballabio C., Panagos P., Montanarella L. Mapping topsoil physical 

properties at European scale using the LUCAS database (2016) 

Geoderma, 261 , pp. 110-123.

Buildings and 

water bodies

VectorMap District 

(Ordnance Survey)

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/o

pendatadownload/products.html

http://www.nationalarchiv

es.gov.uk/doc/open-

government-

licence/version/3/

Contains OS data © Crown copyright [and database right] (2015)

BAP Priority 

Habitats

Priority Habitat 

Inventory (Natural 

England)

http://www.gis.naturalengland.org.uk

/pubs/gis/GIS_register.asp

https://www.gov.uk/gover

nment/uploads/system/upl

oads/attachment_data/file

/391764/OGL-NE-OS.pdf

© Natural England copyright. Contains Ordnance Survey data © 

Crown copyright and database right [2015]

The James Hutton 

Institute Open Data Licence (download).pdf

https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/opendatadownload/products.html
http://www.magic.gov.uk/
http://www.macaulayscientific.com/gis2_dataset_5a.php
http://esdac.jrc.ec.europa.eu/content/topsoil-physical-properties-european-scale-using-lucas-topsoil
http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0016706115300173
https://www.ordnancesurvey.co.uk/opendatadownload/products.html
http://www.gis.naturalengland.org.uk/pubs/gis/GIS_register.asp


Data layer Source of data Download location Licence Attribution statement

Semi-natural 

woodland

Ancient woodland/ semi-natural 

woodland inventories (Natural 

England/ Scottish Natural 

Heritage)

http://www.magic.gov.uk/dataset_d

ownload_summary.htm

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/d

oc/open-government-

licence/version/3/

© Natural England copyright. 

Contains Ordnance Survey data © 

Crown copyright and database right 

[2015]

Contains public sector information 

licensed under the Open Government 

Licence v3.0.

Copyright Scottish Natural Heritage 

Contains Ordnance Survey data © 

Crown copyright and database right 

(2015)

Parks & gardens Historic Parks & Gardens 

(English Heritage)

https://historicengland.org.uk/listin

g/the-list/data-downloads/

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/d

oc/open-government-

licence/version/3/

© English Heritage [2015]. Contains 

Ordnance Survey data © Crown 

copyright and database right [year]

The English Heritage GIS Data 

contained in this material was 

obtained on [2015]. The most publicly 

available up to date English Heritage 

GIS Data can be obtained from 

http://www.english-heritage.org.uk.

Parks & 

gardens

Gardens & Designated 

Landscapes (Historic 

Environment Scotland)

http://portal.historic-

scotland.gov.uk/spatialdownloads/g

ardens

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/d

oc/open-government-

licence/version/3/

Contains Historic Environment 

Scotland and Ordnance Survey data 

© Historic Environment Scotland -

Scottish Charity No. SC045925 © 

Crown copyright and database right 

[2015].

Stewardship 

options

Environmental Stewardship and 

classic Countryside Stewardship 

options/areas

http://www.geostore.com/environ

ment-

agency/WebStore?xml=environmen

t-agency/xml/ogcDataDownload.xml

https://www.gov.uk/government/uplo

ads/system/uploads/attachment_data

/file/391764/OGL-NE-OS.pdf

© Natural England copyright. 

Contains Ordnance Survey data © 

Crown copyright and database right 

[2015]

http://www.magic.gov.uk/dataset_download_summary.htm
https://historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list/data-downloads/
http://portal.historic-scotland.gov.uk/spatialdownloads/gardens


Data layer Source of data Download location Licence Attribution statement

Water stressed 

areas

Water Resource Availability 

and Abstraction Reliability 

(Environment Agency)

http://www.geostore.com/enviro

nment-

agency/WebStore?xml=environme

nt-

agency/xml/ogcDataDownload.xm

l

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk

/doc/open-government-

licence/version/3/

Contains public sector information 

licensed under the Open 

Government Licence v3.0.

Flood Risk Flood Risk Areas 

(Environment Agency)

http://www.geostore.com/enviro

nment-

agency/WebStore?xml=environm

ent-

agency/xml/ogcDataDownload.x

ml

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk

/doc/open-government-

licence/version/3/

Contains public sector information 

licensed under the Open 

Government Licence v3.0.

Nitrate 

vulnerability

Nitrate Vulnerable Zones 

(Defra/ Scottish 

Government)

http://www.magic.gov.uk/Dataset

_Download_Summary.htm

https://data.gov.uk/dataset/nitrat

e-vulnerable-zones1

http://www.magic.gov.uk/Copyright

_Information_Data_Download.htm

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk

/doc/open-government-

licence/version/3/

Copyright Defra, contains Ordnance 

Survey data

Copyright Scottish Government, 

contains Ordnance Survey data

Land tenancy June Survey of Agriculture 

county level results (Defra/ 

Scottish Government)

https://www.gov.uk/government/

statistical-data-sets/structure-of-

the-agricultural-industry-in-

england-and-the-uk-at-june

http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk

/doc/open-government-

licence/version/3/

Contains public sector information 

licensed under the Open 

Government Licence v3.0.

http://www.geostore.com/environment-agency/WebStore?xml=environment-agency/xml/ogcDataDownload.xml
http://www.geostore.com/environment-agency/WebStore?xml=environment-agency/xml/ogcDataDownload.xml
http://www.magic.gov.uk/Dataset_Download_Summary.htm
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/structure-of-the-agricultural-industry-in-england-and-the-uk-at-june

